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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Welcome to the

          3  Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and

          4  Concessions, Subcommittee of the Land Use Committee

          5  of the New York City Council.  Today's date is June

          6  1st, 2006.  We have a number of items to consider

          7  today.  We'll go through them as expeditiously as

          8  possible.

          9                 I first would like to introduce my

         10  colleagues who are here today, Members of the

         11  Committee, Council Member Yvette Clarke, Council

         12  Member Andy Lanza, and we are also joined by Council

         13  Member Oliver Koppell of the Bronx.

         14                 The first item that we will be

         15  considering today is the Preconsidered Third Party

         16  Transfers.  The first one is Brooklyn Community

         17  Board's 134586 13, 16, and 17, 2006/5396HAK and the

         18  second is Brooklyn Community Board's 358016, this is

         19  number 2006/5408HAK, both of them are in rem actions

         20  Number 49, applications from the Department of

         21  Finance.

         22                 There are two properties that were

         23  withdrawn from this in rem Action 49.  They are 823

         24  Saint John's Place and 619 Halsey Street.  These

         25  have both been considered already by the Committee
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          2  on Housing and Buildings.  So I will ask if there is

          3  any discussion or question on this subject?  Seeing

          4  none, we will move on to Preconsidered Staten Island

          5  Community Board 1, which is Number 20065409 HAR in

          6  REM action Number 48, also an application submitted

          7  by the Department of Finance.  Open for discussion,

          8  questions, comments on that one.  Seeing none, we

          9  will move onto the first item where I do believe we

         10  have some comments.  Land Use Number 155, I would

         11  like to open the Hearing on this as the Netherland

         12  Avenue, SAR City Map Change, Bronx Community Board

         13  8. This is Number C030425MMX, in the District of

         14  Council Member Koppell.  This is an application

         15  submitted by Salanter Akiba Riverdale Academy (SAR),

         16  under Sections 197C and 199 under the Charter for an

         17  amendment to the City map, involving the elimination

         18  of a portion of Netherland Avenue, between West

         19  259th and 261st Streets.  The adjustment grades and

         20  acquisition of disposition of real property related

         21  thereto.

         22                 So, I am going to call the applicant

         23  to the witness table and that I believe representing

         24  the applicant today are Debra May Zeitehik, Jay

         25  Segal, and Rabbi Harstark (phonetic).  How did I do
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          2  Rabbi?  Give me the right pronunciation.

          3                 RABBI HARSTARK: (Speaking from

          4  audience off mic.)

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Oh, I did all

          6  right. Okay. Welcome.  We would like to give you an

          7  opportunity to present this. In order to work the

          8  microphones, you just push the button in, and you

          9  can go right ahead as soon as you are ready, and

         10  welcome.

         11                 MR. SEGAL: Thank you Chairman

         12  Garodnick and Council Members. My name is Jay Segal.

         13  I am the Land Use Counsel for SAR, and as you have

         14  stated, this is action is to demap part of the

         15  street.  It is the part that starts here and ends

         16  over here.  This is the street.  Right now there is

         17  nothing there, it's mapped, it's unbuilt, it's a

         18  hill, it's never been used, because no one ever

         19  thinks that it will be used and that's the reason

         20  why we are applying to demap it is that there are

         21  two things that SAR would like to do.

         22                 The first, SAR, as you stated is a

         23  school.  They plan to have a high school here, that

         24  has been here for three years.  The demapping will

         25  not facilitate the high school that's in operation.
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          2  What the demapping will do is three things.  It will

          3  improve the safety for the children who are there

          4  now because as of now, people are dropped off by bus

          5  and car on the public street, over here.  The

          6  teachers park on the street, it's just a congestion

          7  issue, it's not a safety issue.  The third reason is

          8  to construct a ball field, which I am going to show

          9  you in a minute.

         10                 When SAR purchased the property a few

         11  years ago, several of the concerns in the community

         12  had to do with safety, congestion on the street over

         13  here, by people dropping off, and the people who

         14  complained the most and I am going to switch over to

         15  a big picture, were the people at these huge

         16  buildings called Skyview behind, there are about

         17  1,400 units there, they were most concerned about

         18  congestion issues and safety issues.

         19                 They actually came to us and we came

         20  to them and we agreed to buy part of their property.

         21    And the part of the property allowed us to

         22  construct, and to propose to construct parking,

         23  which we are showing over here, 79 spaces.  On this

         24  map, over here with the bus drop- off. In addition,

         25  we purchased some extra land from Skyview to
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          2  construct a ball field, a softball field for the

          3  kids in the school.

          4                 Issues arose from some neighbors over

          5  here mostly, below the softball field, they had a

          6  concern that --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Let me

          8  interrupt you for one moment.  We have been joined

          9  by Council Member Inez Dickens, who has an emergency

         10  obligation she needs to run to.  So I am just going

         11  to allow her the opportunity to vote now.  So I am

         12  just going to interrupt you and please accept my

         13  apologies for that.

         14                 Counsel will you please call the roll

         15  for Council Member Dickens.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Dickens

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye. Thank

         18  you so much Mr. Chair for this.  I apologize for the

         19  interruption, please forgive me.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And that is

         21  aye on all of the items that we are voting on today?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.  Thank

         24  you very much. Sorry for that Mr. Segal, go ahead.

         25                 MR. SEGAL: Thank you.  There was
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          2  concern expressed by neighbors, principally the

          3  woman who lived in the house right here, that in

          4  order to construct this ball field we proposed, and

          5  had to construct a large retaining wall.  The

          6  retaining wall would go up to a maximum height of

          7  about 40 feet over here, of the ball field.  The

          8  neighbor expressed concern, under the leadership of

          9  Council Member Koppell, we met many occasions with

         10  the neighbor, ended up negotiating an agreement,

         11  which set the wall back in several stages by 20

         12  feet, and had a significant vegetation and tree

         13  planting in order to shield the wall from the

         14  neighbors, over here to the South.

         15                 And we really appreciate the fact

         16  that Council Member put us together with neighbors.

         17  In fact the Council for the neighbor most directly

         18  affected, this house, which has on a common boarder

         19  all but a couple of feet, is here today to testify

         20  in favor of the application. I would like now to

         21  turn the mic. Over to the other people here to talk

         22  about why proposing this is essential for the

         23  school.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.  Go

         25  right ahead and identify yourself for the record
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          2  Rabbi.

          3                 RABBI HARSTARK: Good afternoon.  My

          4  name is Rabbi Anatoli Harstark (phonetic), I serve

          5  as the Principal of SAR High School, since it's

          6  founding.  I would like to echo what Mr. Segal said

          7  but from the bird's- eye hands- on view of the

          8  person who spends everyday at the arrival and

          9  dismissal of the building. Next year will be our

         10  first year having full grades.  High School numbers

         11  over 300 students and about 50 faculty members. And

         12  watching the kids come and go, essentially the issue

         13  of safety is of primary importance, both for the

         14  travelers on the street and the students who are

         15  crossing the street.

         16                 To allow for the students who travel

         17  from five different communities and they are

         18  travelling both by bus and by car pool and there are

         19  people going in different directions and it's vital,

         20  I think, for their safety to be able to have a

         21  space, which is off to the side so that both the

         22  students and teachers who are arriving and departing

         23  and the people who are travelling down from Skyview

         24  have properly clear space.  And, I think it's really

         25  vital point for us, having a sense of security to
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          2  feel like they can travel safely. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MS. ZEITEHIK: Hi, I am Debra May

          6  Zeitehik and I am Executive Director of SAR.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 Rabbi Harstark deals with you know,

          9  kind of the on the grounds kids and is around at

         10  dismissal time everyday at the high school and you

         11  know, is the one, who I guess gasps as he sees kids

         12  running across the crowded street, with buses lined

         13  up there. We both deal with calls from parents

         14  saying there has got to be a better way to do it and

         15  what we are really trying to do is provide a way to

         16  have a bus turn- around on the property of the

         17  school and not leave the buses there.

         18                 About a year ago, I was contacted by

         19  the Community Board in Riverdale about dealing with

         20  some of the congestion on the street and we put in

         21  an application to eliminate parking on our side of

         22  259th Street, not to create school parking, which

         23  would have been much sought by us and would have

         24  been very helpful, but really to treat it just as a

         25  safety matter, which we have.  It allows for some
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          2  room for the buses, but our population is expanding

          3  and the school is filling up, we've been adding a

          4  grade a year, and it doesn't come close to

          5  addressing the safety issues at dismissal time.

          6  That needs to be addressed.

          7                 The parking issues also, because I

          8  deal with our neighbors at Skyview and their

          9  Property Manager.  There is no question that it is a

         10  frustration for our neighbors at Skyview that it's

         11  not easy for them to park their cars, it's not easy

         12  for our teachers to park.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, Skyview is

         14  the area right in the back.

         15                 MS. ZEITEHIK: It is the apartment

         16  buildings that you are seeing.  And the access to

         17  those buildings, the primary access, is 259th

         18  Street, which is the street that it ends up being

         19  congested at our drop- off time, which is a little

         20  before eight in the morning, when they are trying to

         21  get down and get to work.  And our dismissal time is

         22  after five, which is when they are starting to come

         23  home from work.

         24                 So, we have tried to work with the

         25  community, but our plan with Skyview at the time we
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          2  bought the land was to be able to construct parking

          3  and to work together to be able to enable that for

          4  the good of the school and the community.

          5                 Finally, I mean the ball field is

          6  something that we spent money on the land from

          7  Skyview, we feel very much that certainly in

          8  Riverdale it is the norm that high schools in the

          9  area have ball fields.  It is as big a ball field

         10  that we could get.  We would like it to be twice the

         11  size, it's not going to get there, but we feel like

         12  we need to have ample space for the kids to play

         13  softball and to feel like it is an appropriate

         14  campus for the high school that we are building.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         17  Just so you can show me on the map, the portion of

         18  Netherland Avenue, 259 to 261 on this map, can you

         19  show me where?  It's that range right there. Okay.

         20  That's what I thought you were saying.  And it goes

         21  right across.

         22                 MR. SEGAL: Jay Segal speaking.  The

         23  high school of course is not in Netherland Avenue

         24  because it couldn't have been built if it were.  But

         25  to the side of the high school, Netherland Avenue
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          2  comes down, it goes through the area we want to make

          3  for a bus turn- around and parking and then comes up

          4  through here through the area we want to be a ball

          5  field.  And we couldn't do any of that, if the ball

          6  field had remained -- sorry if the street remained

          7  and weren't demapped, we couldn't construct any of

          8  those things.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And there is

         10  nothing today, there is nothing there at the hill.

         11                 MR. SEGAL: Nothing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.  Thank

         13  you.  Are there questions from my colleagues?  Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't have

         15  questions because you have received, Mr. Chairman

         16  and I received a copy of a letter from the SAR

         17  Academy in which certain covenants or promises are

         18  made and when testimony is finished I'll make a

         19  little bit of a statement about it.  But, I've met

         20  in my office with representatives of the school,

         21  I've been present at the Community Board meetings,

         22  where this has been discussed and so I don't need to

         23  burden the record with a lot of questions.  I will

         24  make a statement, however, at the end of testimony.

         25  I don't need to ask questions at this moment because
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          2  I have this letter.  I see that the letter is

          3  actually dated yesterday and perhaps the only thing

          4  that I would ask perhaps for the Council to say and

          5  perhaps Ms. Zeitchik as well, is that they are

          6  committed to maintaining the commitments made in the

          7  letter addressed to you Mr. Chairman, of May 31,

          8  2006.  So, I think maybe you could say for the

          9  record that the institution as well, both from the

         10  Council and from the institution itself, are

         11  committed to maintaining the commitments made in

         12  that letter.

         13                 MS. ZEITEHIK: Sure, I have no problem

         14  stating for SAR that we are committed to the

         15  statements made in the letter and that we would

         16  follow through on each of them assuming that the

         17  street was demapped.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Just to

         19  confirm Council member Koppell, we are talking about

         20  the letter from you Ms. Zeitehik, to me, the Chair

         21  Garodnick, dated May 31, 2006, regarding ULURP

         22  Number 030425MNX.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  That's

         24  right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Did you have
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          2  other questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just one

          4  other question because something was just raised to

          5  me privately.  Commitment in this letter includes

          6  and Commitment number 10, it says that the

          7  development complies with all City zoning

          8  regulations, and I'll ask Counsel to confirm that

          9  this is true.

         10                 MR. SEGAL: Well, we haven't yet

         11  applied for a permit to the Building Department

         12  because we can't do that unless the street were

         13  demapped.  And we certainly wouldn't submit an

         14  application that we didn't think complied and if it

         15  turned out that the Building Department had a

         16  different view, we would have to modify the

         17  application.  But we certainly intend, not to ask

         18  for variances, or special permits or anything, but

         19  to build something that's as of right, ball field

         20  wise.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And if a

         22  portion of the property is in the so- called natural

         23  area district, and I'm not sure whether it is or

         24  isn't, but the contention is made that some of it,

         25  you'll comply with those regulations, as well,
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          2  that's part of the Zoning Code, as I understand it.

          3                 MR. SEGAL: Absolutely.  There is a

          4  small portion that is located in the natural feature

          5  district, the ball field will not be on it.  It's

          6  all the way up here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

          8                 MR. SEGAL: And if we wanted to do

          9  anything in that portion, we would have to make an

         10  application to the City Planning Commission to do

         11  something.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: All right.

         13                 MR. SEGAL: And of course, we would

         14  follow the rules and if we wanted to do anything and

         15  we talked about maybe constructing a tennis court,

         16  we would apply to the City Planning Commission,

         17  pursuant to those rules, asking permission to

         18  construct a tennis court.  It would go through the

         19  normal review process.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.  And

         21  you know those rules have been considerably

         22  strengthened by this Council --

         23                 MR. SEGAL: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- As well as

         25  the City Planning Commission.
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          2                 MR. SEGAL: We are very aware of that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. Very

          4  good.  Thank you. Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          6  Are there any other questions?  Being none, thank

          7  you very much for being here. We are going to call

          8  our next representative, our next member of the

          9  public to testify, Martin Miller of 6004 Netherland

         10  Avenue. Mr. Miller, welcome. Go ahead.

         11                 MR. MILLER: My name is Martin Miller,

         12  I'm a resident of Netherland Avenue in the area that

         13  they want to demap.  And me and my neighbors, there

         14  are eight of us, really urge the Council not to

         15  demap.  We have nothing against SAR using the lower

         16  end of Netherland Avenue by 259th Street in order to

         17  turn their cars and buses around, that's fine.  But,

         18  we don't see why it's necessary to demap the street

         19  in order to do that.

         20                 Our local Community Board already

         21  recommended that this request be refused.  And

         22  Council Member Koppell has probably stated that he

         23  would support Community Board eight's decision.

         24                 I just to say, this is a quite

         25  residential neighborhood, that will be marred by the
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          2  increased noise and pollution from parking lots and

          3  playing fields in the demapped area.  SAR has agreed

          4  to a list of restrictions agreed to by the Bronx

          5  Borough President, but in the past they haven't

          6  always kept their promises.  They haven't been that

          7  good.

          8                 They have already dumped a huge

          9  amount of earth on Netherland Avenue and raised the

         10  level about 40 feet, very close to our homes.  They

         11  didn't have any permits or permission to do that. We

         12  have learned that from the permit issuing body.

         13                 But, if the Council decides to let

         14  them demap, we will ask that they make a condition

         15  that they cannot build in the Riverdale green- belt

         16  area.  They just mentioned now that they plan to do

         17  that, that's very close to some of our homes.  It

         18  actually abuts one person's home.  And we would ask

         19  that you make that a condition of the demapping.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         21  much.  Are there questions?

         22                 MR. MILLER: Let me say just one other

         23  thing, all right? I'll like to read from Council

         24  Member Koppell's Newsletter, where he says. "I am

         25  proud of my record of accomplishing over the last
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          2  four years.  I was instrumental in obtaining zoning

          3  changes in Riverdale, Olinville, Woodlawn and Van

          4  Cortlandt Village, to protect these residential

          5  neighborhoods from over development and to help

          6  maintain the character and quality of life in these

          7  communities."  I think it would be wonderful if we

          8  turned those words into action.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you sir.

         10    Thank you very much for your testimony.  Are there

         11  questions?  No other questions?  I'm going to call

         12  our next witness, Mr. Christopher Rizzo.  Mr. Rizzo,

         13  come on up.  You may go right ahead.

         14                 MR. RIZZO: Thank you.  Good

         15  afternoon.  My name is Christopher Rizzo. I'm an

         16  attorney at Carter, Ledyard and Milburn. Our firm

         17  represents Dorothy McLean and her family.

         18                 The McLean's are the owners of the

         19  home located directly to the north of SARs high

         20  school campus, and therefore the most directly

         21  impacted by the proposed development. My remarks

         22  today are brief and I'm simply going to restate the

         23  letter, which I have already sent to Council Member

         24  Garodnick.

         25                 The McLean's support the conditional
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          2  approval of SARs demapping application.  SAR has

          3  engaged in a series of good faith negotiations with

          4  its neighbors and community members. The results of

          5  those negotiations are reflected in the Borough

          6  President's recommendation of approval with

          7  conditions, dated March 17th, which have been

          8  incorporated into the City Planning Commission's

          9  approval, dated April 26th. It includes setbacks,

         10  vegetation, open space areas and other elements,

         11  which balance SARs needs with those at the community

         12  in the development of the steeply sloped site.

         13  These conditions include the creation of a 20 foot

         14  vegetated setback between the McLean's property and

         15  SARs retaining wall for its athletic field.  And

         16  that's of course the most important element for our

         17  clients, the McLeans.

         18                 Relatively soon we expect to execute

         19  an agreement to memorialize the commitments and we

         20  are particularly pleased that SAR has agreed to

         21  abide by the conditions and the Borough President's

         22  recommendation and the City Planning Commission's

         23  approval.  And so we support the approval of this

         24  application with those conditions.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very
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          2  much Mr. Rizzo.  Are there questions for Mr. Rizzo?

          3  Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony.

          4                 Now, I have no other members of the

          5  public wishing to testify on this matter.  But, I

          6  would like to give an opportunity to my colleague

          7  Council Member Oliver Koppell to make a statement

          8  for the record.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you

         10  very much Mr. Chairman.  Let me just say that there

         11  is a long history associated with this application

         12  and there has been a great deal of discussion and

         13  debate and negotiation.  Going back to the

         14  negotiations that ensued at the time that the SAR

         15  High School was first proposed.

         16                 When the high school was first built

         17  there was great concern by a number of neighbors,

         18  but particularly concerned by the Skyview apartment

         19  co- op, which is behind the school.  By the way,

         20  that picture makes it look even more massive than it

         21  is.  It isn't quite that massive, if you look at it

         22  in actuality.  But, it is a very substantial complex

         23  with many hundreds of apartments.

         24                 Lengthy negotiations, I know took

         25  place between the sponsors of the SAR school and
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          2  Skyview, which ultimately ended with a declaration

          3  that has been filed with the Land Records that

          4  provide for a whole list of restrictions on the use

          5  of this property, some of which apply to the area

          6  that is now being developed.

          7                 So we have the agreement with

          8  Skyview, which is a protection both for Skyview and

          9  for others.  The second thing I would say is that

         10  the plan to create parking and access from 259th

         11  Street North, as shown on the map was something that

         12  is not new. And even the idea of having athletic

         13  fields in the back there is not something that is

         14  new.  It was contemplated when the school was first

         15  conceived and this is just really flushing out

         16  something that has been contemplated for a long

         17  time.

         18                 I must say that there weren't a lot

         19  of  -- there was a lot of concern about the building

         20  of the school, but after the school was approved, I

         21  didn't hear a lot of continuing concern, either

         22  about the idea of putting parking there or putting a

         23  ball field there until the demapping application

         24  came to pass.

         25                 Now, I'm not saying, I'm not blaming
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          2  anybody for that but, I'm just saying that this is

          3  not something brand new. This was something that was

          4  contemplated since the school was contemplated.

          5  Now, since SAR had to get the street demapped that

          6  did create new concerns.  And I must compliment the

          7  Community Board for its concern, listening to the

          8  neighbors and debating this and insisting on certain

          9  conditions being met and those are the conditions

         10  that were incorporated by the Borough President in

         11  his conditional approval.

         12                 The people representing the school

         13  are all nice people, but I think it's quite clear

         14  that they did not comply with all of the conditions

         15  as quickly as they should have.  And there was

         16  considerable antagonism to them at the Community

         17  Board because they didn't.  And by the time the

         18  Community Board had to act on the ULURP clock, they

         19  had not complied with all the conditions.  At least

         20  that is my belief.

         21                 And so the Community Board, I think,

         22  had they complied with all these conditions before

         23  the Community Board Meeting, I believe the Community

         24  Board would have approved it.  And I was at the

         25  meeting when the disapproval was voted and I know
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          2  why it was voted.  It was voted because all of the

          3  assurances that the Community Board wanted to see

          4  had not been completed at that time. They were

          5  completed soon after and they have been completed

          6  now, but they weren't completed then.  And that was

          7  the fault of the applicant.

          8            But since the Borough President took this

          9  up and did a very good job of actually codifying, if

         10  you will, the requirements and then those were met

         11  and they were approved by the City Planning

         12  Commission, as was stated and then now before us, I

         13  think that the application should be approved.  I

         14  think in addition, the concerns of the nearest

         15  neighbor, the McLean's and they had obviously very

         16  competent Counsel representing them, got further

         17  assurance of even beyond what the Community Board

         18  was looking for.  And those assurances I understand,

         19  are incorporated in a binding agreement. So I think

         20  that's all to the good.

         21                 Now, frankly speaking, and maybe I'm

         22  wrong here, but my belief, quite honestly is that

         23  the demapping of this street is a very good thing

         24  for the neighbors to the north.  If I lived there I

         25  would be very happy, because if there is a mapped

                                                            25

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  street there, there was always a threat that it

          3  would be opened.  And if you open that street, that

          4  would certainly not be in the interest of the

          5  neighbors to the north, as far as I'm concerned.  I

          6  don't see how that could be, that they would have

          7  traffic going where there is now no traffic.

          8                 So, I think from their point of view,

          9  actually the demapping of this street is a good

         10  thing.  They may not like the ball field being

         11  there, but the fact that the street's not there, in

         12  my view, is a net benefit.  I hate doing anything

         13  that anybody in my district is unhappy with.  But,

         14  taking all of this into account, I think this is a

         15  clearly a net plus and it has sufficient

         16  restrictions that it certainly satisfies me.

         17                 In my view actually, I'm glad that

         18  Mr. Miller read the little quote from my Newsletter

         19  because in my view this is further in furtherance of

         20  what I've committed, because it takes cars off the

         21  street to an off- street parking facility, it opens

         22  up 259th Street, which is the main access point for

         23  the big Skyview apartments, and doesn't have the

         24  school buses stopping there or the teachers parking

         25  there or even stopping there. It creates a ball
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          2  field, which is a good thing for the kids who go to

          3  the school and if in the future there is some

          4  attempt to build in the natural area district or to

          5  build tennis courts, which may or may not be a good

          6  thing, I have some bias, I'm a tennis player but,

          7  whether tennis courts should be there or not is not

          8  what we are debating right now.  That is not the

          9  issue.

         10                 So, I do, with regret, that there are

         11  some neighbors who are still upset about this, I do

         12  support this and hope the Committee will advance

         13  approval.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         15  much Council Member Koppell.  Seeing nobody else

         16  wishing to make comment, among my colleagues or

         17  members of the public, I will close the Hearing on

         18  Land Use 155, the Netherland Avenue SAR City map

         19  change and open the Hearing on Land Use Number 49.

         20  I am going to invite Carol Clark of HPD to come to

         21  the witness table.  This Land Use Number 49, Non-

         22  ULURP Number 2006/5168HAK in the District of Council

         23  Member Darlene Mealy.  It is three addresses 195

         24  Hopkinson Avenue, 790 McDonough Street and 2160 Dean

         25  Street, all in Brooklyn and in the NEP Program.  So
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          2  Ms. Clark, why don't you go ahead and introduce Land

          3  Use 49 for us please.

          4                 MS. CLARK: I am joined by Terry

          5  O'Rouin, who is the Land Use Director at HPD.  Land

          6  Use 49 is actually in our Neighborhood

          7  Entrepreneur's Program and the NEP Program enables

          8  neighborhood- based private property managers to own

          9  and manage clusters of occupied and vacant City-

         10  owned buildings.  By focusing on small locally based

         11  entrepreneurs, HPD is rebuilding local real estate

         12  capacity in addition to ensuring quality management

         13  and maintenance for these buildings.

         14                 LU 49 consists of three buildings, as

         15  you noted, two of them are vacant, one is occupied.

         16  The buildings will be rehabilitated by Mr. Joseph

         17  Norton and Company, and this will provide a total of

         18  seventeen rental units.  The tenants will be

         19  checker- boarded throughout the cluster as the

         20  renovation proceeds and we have had dialogue with

         21  Council Member Mealy who has indicated her support

         22  of the proposed project.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         24  When you say checker- boarded throughout the

         25  project, you mean while one is being renovated you
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          2  will put them in the other buildings?  Is that

          3  correct?

          4                 MS. CLARK: That's correct.  That's

          5  exactly correct. We use the vacant ones first, and

          6  then move around the buildings. The building that is

          7  occupied is an eight- unit building.  Five of them

          8  are occupied and so those residents of five

          9  apartments can move around the cluster as the

         10  renovation is done.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Just to

         12  confirm, you said you have consulted with Council

         13  Member Darlene Mealy on the subject?

         14                 MS. CLARK: That is correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And she has

         16  indicated her approval of this application Land Use

         17  49?

         18                 MS. CLARK: That is correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         20  Are there other questions?  Seeing none, I will

         21  close the Hearing on Land Use 49 Non- ULURP Number

         22  2006/5168HAK, so I am closing the Hearing on that

         23  one and opening the Hearing on Land Use 109, which

         24  is Non- ULURP 2006/5338HAK at the address 291

         25  Barryman Street in Brooklyn, the District of Council
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          2  Member Charles Barron, part of the HomeWorks

          3  Program, Ms. Clark?

          4                 MS. CLARK: Right, 109 consists of one

          5  vacant, two unit building that is in City ownership

          6  and we are proposing that it be rehabilitated by

          7  Renaissance Park, LLC, under HPD's HomeWorks

          8  Program.  We have consulted with Council Member

          9  Barron.  He has reviewed and approved the project.

         10  As you know, purchasers in the HomeWorks Programs

         11  are required to occupy a primary residence in the

         12  building and through 50 percent Community Board

         13  preference, the home buyers are selected.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         15  Any questions? Seeing none, I will close the Hearing

         16  on Land Use 109, Non- ULURP 2006/5338HAK, and open

         17  the Hearing on Land Use Number 110 Non- ULURP

         18  2006/5339HAK, also in Brooklyn, also in the District

         19  of Council Member Barron, located at 297 Legions

         20  Street and as part of the StoreWorks Program and Ms.

         21  Clark as part of your presentation please introduce

         22  the StoreWorks Program as well.

         23                 MS. CLARK: Right.  The StoreWorks

         24  Program, its purpose is to rehabilitate small

         25  vacant, mixed use buildings, that are currently
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          2  owned by the City and then to restore to private

          3  ownership.  LU 110, consists of one vacant building

          4  in HPD Storeworks Program and after rehab the

          5  building will provide two residential units and

          6  ground- floor commercial space, consisting of 1,953

          7  square feet.  Council Member Barron has recommended

          8  approval.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         10  Questions? Seeing none, I am closing the Hearing on

         11  Land Use 110, Non- ULURP 2006/5339HAK and opening

         12  the Hearing on Land Use Number 133, Non ULURP Number

         13  2006/5404HAM in the District of Council Member

         14  Martinez.  The address is 557 West 183rd Street,

         15  part of the Neighborhood Entrepreneurs Program.  Ms.

         16  Clark.

         17                 MS. CLARK: That's correct.  And it's

         18  LU 133, consists of one occupied building.  It will,

         19  after rehabilitation provide four rental units.

         20  Council Member Martinez has reviewed the project,

         21  which is proposed to be developed by Jose Estenall

         22  (phonetic) and the Council Member recommends its

         23  approval.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: You said this

         25  would create four rental units?
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          2                 MS. CLARK: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          4  Are there questions?  Seeing none, we will close the

          5  Hearing on Land Use 133 Non- ULURP 2006/5404HAM and

          6  open the Hearing on Land Use 173, Non ULURP Number

          7  2006/5501HAM at 27 West 84th Street in Manhattan, in

          8  the District of Council Member Gail Brewer and part

          9  of the Tenant Interim Lease Program.  Ms. Clark.

         10                 MS. CLARK: Right.  Well, we called it

         11  TIL Program, it's a program at HPD that assists

         12  organized tenant associations in City- owned

         13  buildings to develop economically self- sufficient

         14  low income Co- Operatives.  And TIL in fact,

         15  provides training to these tenant associations and

         16  building management, maintenance and financial

         17  record- keeping to ensure their success in managing

         18  the buildings once they are actually Co- Op.

         19                 This particular property at LU 173,

         20  has 20 units and Council Member Brewer has been

         21  briefed and recommend's approval of the project.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         23  Questions? Seeing none, I'll close the Hearing on

         24  Land Use 173, Non- ULURP 2006/5501HAM and open the

         25  Hearing on our last item on today's agenda, which is
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          2  Preconsidered Non- ULURP Number 2006/5518HAM, which

          3  is at 254 East 125th Street in Manhattan, in the

          4  District of Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito in

          5  the Negotiated Sale Program.  Ms. Clark.

          6                 MS. CLARK:  Correct.  This is a five-

          7  story mixed use building that we are proposing to be

          8  providing 13 residential units once it is

          9  rehabilitated, along with 880 square feet of

         10  commercial space.  The developer of the property

         11  that's proposed, is the owner of an adjacent

         12  property and he is a long- term East Harlem

         13  resident. We went in and briefed Council Member

         14  Viverito last week and she is enthusiastically

         15  supports the passage of the project.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         17  You said right now this is five- story mixed use?

         18                 MS. CLARK: Right.  It's got

         19  commercial space on the ground floor and it's

         20  currently vacant, but it will have, once renovated

         21  13 residential units above the commercial space.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Right.  Are

         23  there other questions? Seeing none, I will close the

         24  Hearing on Non- ULURP Number 2006/5518HAM.

         25                 For the purposes of voting today we
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          2  will couple together all the items that we have

          3  heard and we will lay over the remaining items on

          4  today's agenda at the request of the specific

          5  Council Member in whose district those properties

          6  reside.  The Chair recommends an aye vote.  I will

          7  ask the Counsel to call the roll.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Garodnick

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

         11  Clarke

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Lanza.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Permission to

         16  explain my vote. Brief comment Chairman.  With

         17  respect to Land Use Number 155, I noted in Mr.

         18  Miller's testimony, discussed that if the street

         19  were to be demapped that it was his desire that

         20  there would be an agreement that no buildings were

         21  to be erected there.  And I just want to note that

         22  in the SAR agreement that I am reading, that I have

         23  no doubt the work of Council Member Koppell and the

         24  Borough President and SAR it clearly states that no

         25  buildings shall be built there.  And I just wanted
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          2  the record to be clear on that.  I commend Council

          3  Member Koppell on his efforts there.  I vote aye.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          5  four in the affirmative and none in the negative and

          6  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

          7  approved and referred to the full Committee.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          9  much.  Thank you Ms. Clark.  And congratulations to

         10  the school, and to Council Member Koppell for all of

         11  your hard work.  This meeting is adjourned.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 1:50 p.m.)
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